

No. 33836

MULTILATERAL

Agreement on the establishment of the International Vaccine Institute (with constitution). Opened for signature at New York on 28 October 1996

Authentic text: English.

Registered ex officio on 29 May 1997.

MULTILATÉRAL

Accord portant création de l'Institut International des Vaccins (avec constitution). Ouvert à la signature à New York le 28 octobre 1996

Texte authentique : anglais.

Enregistré d'office le 29 mai 1997.

AGREEMENT¹ ON THE ESTABLISHMENT OF THE INTERNATIONAL VACCINE INSTITUTE

WHEREAS the Children's Vaccine Initiative (hereinafter referred to as "the CVI") is a coalition of governments, multilateral and bilateral agencies, non-governmental organizations including foundations and associations, and industry dedicated to ensuring the availability of safe, effective and affordable vaccines, the development and introduction of improved and new vaccines and strengthening the capacity of developing countries in vaccine development, production and use in immunization programmes;

WHEREAS at the initiative of the United Nations Development Programme (hereinafter referred to as "UNDP"), the Republic of Korea has agreed to be the host country of a newly created institute to be named as the International Vaccine Institute (hereinafter referred to as "the Institute") dedicated to strengthening the capacity of developing countries in the field of vaccine technology and carrying out vaccine-related research and development;

WHEREAS the Parties to this Agreement consider the Institute as an instrument to contribute to achieving the goals of the CVI;

WHEREAS the Parties to this Agreement wish to create the Institute as an international organization with suitable governance, juridical personality, and appropriate international status, privileges and immunities and other conditions necessary to enable it to operate effectively towards the attainment of its objectives;

WHEREAS the Parties to this Agreement wish to establish the Institute as an integral part of the CVI policy framework, strategy and activities;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties signatory hereto agree as follows:

¹ Came into force on 29 May 1997, in accordance with article VIII:

<i>Participant</i>	<i>Date of deposit of the instrument of ratification</i>
Republic of Korea	17 December 1996
Sweden	2 April 1997
Uzbekistan	29 May 1997

ARTICLE I ESTABLISHMENT

There shall be established an independent international organization entitled the "International Vaccine Institute" which will operate in accordance with the Constitution appended hereto as its integral part.

ARTICLE II RIGHTS, PRIVILEGES AND IMMUNITIES

1. The Government of the Republic of Korea grants the Institute the same rights, privileges and immunities as are customarily accorded to a similar type of international organization.
2. Privileges and immunities are granted to the Members of the Board of Trustees, the Director and staffs of the Institute as is stipulated in Article VIII, Article IX and Article XIII of the Constitution of the Institute hereto appended and to experts performing missions for the Institute.

ARTICLE III DEPOSITARY

The Secretary-General of the United Nations shall be the Depositary of this Agreement.

ARTICLE IV SIGNATURE

This Agreement shall be open for signature by all states and intergovernmental organizations at Headquarters of the United Nations, New York. It shall remain open for signature for a period of two years from 28 October 1996 unless such period is extended prior to its expiry by the Depositary at the request of the Board of Trustees of the Institute.

ARTICLE V CONSENT TO BE BOUND

This Agreement shall be subject to ratification, acceptance or approval by the signatory states and intergovernmental organizations referred to in Article IV.

ARTICLE VI ACCESSION

After the expiration of the period specified in Article IV, the present Agreement shall remain open for accession by any state or intergovernmental organization, contingent upon approval by the Board of Trustees of the Institute by simple majority.

ARTICLE VII SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES

1. The Parties shall attempt to settle any dispute as to the interpretation or application of this Agreement by negotiations or by any other mutually agreed method.
2. If the dispute is not settled in accordance with Paragraph 1, within a period of (90) days from the request by either Party to settle it, it shall, at the request of either Party, be referred to arbitration.
3. The arbitral tribunal shall be composed of three arbitrators. Each Party shall choose one arbitrator and the third, who shall be the chairperson of the tribunal, to be chosen jointly by the Parties. If the tribunal is not constituted within (3) months of the request for arbitration, the appointment of the arbitrators not yet designated shall be made by the President of the International Court of Justice at the request of either Party.
4. In the event of a vacancy in the presidency of the International Court of Justice or of the inability of the President to exercise the functions of the presidency, or in the event that the President should be a national of the Party to the dispute, the appointment herein provided for may be made by the vice-president of the court or, failing him, by the senior judge.
5. Unless the parties decide otherwise, the tribunal shall determine its own procedure.
6. The tribunal shall apply the principles and rules of international law and its award shall be final and binding on both Parties.

ARTICLE VIII ENTRY INTO FORCE

1. This Agreement and the Constitution appended thereto shall come into force immediately after three instruments of ratification, acceptance, approval or accession have been deposited with the Secretary-General.
2. For each State or intergovernmental organization depositing an instrument of ratification, acceptance, approval or accession after the entry into force of this Agreement, this Agreement shall enter into force on the first day of the month after the date of deposit of the respective instrument.

ARTICLE IX DENUNCIATION

Any party to this Agreement may, by written instrument to the Depositary, denounce this Agreement. Such denunciation of the consent to be bound shall become effective three months after the date on which such instrument is received.

ARTICLE X TERMINATION

This Agreement shall be terminated three months after the Institute is dissolved under the Article XXI of the Constitution.

ARTICLE XI AUTHENTIC TEXT

The authentic text of the present Agreement, including the Constitution appended thereto, shall be in the English language.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned representatives of states and intergovernmental organizations have signed this Agreement in a single original in the English language.

CONSTITUTION OF THE INTERNATIONAL VACCINE INSTITUTE

PREAMBLE

The International Vaccine Institute is founded on the belief that the health of children in developing countries can be dramatically improved by the development, introduction and use of new and improved vaccines and these vaccines should be developed through a dynamic interaction among science, public health, and business. The International Vaccine Institute will be a centre of the science for the public interest where this dynamic interaction can take place through research, training, technical assistance, service provision, and information dissemination.

ARTICLE I HEADQUARTERS' LOCATION

The Institute shall have its headquarters at Seoul, Republic of Korea as has been determined by an independent international site selection process initiated at the request of the UNDP, in accordance with the requirements for the exercise of the functions and fulfilment of the purposes of the Institute.

ARTICLE II STATUS

1. The Institute shall be an international research and development centre established at the initiative of UNDP, as part of its contribution to the CVI, which is an international movement of agencies, corporations, foundations and governments dedicated to ensuring the continued availability of effective and affordable vaccines, and the development and introduction of new and improved vaccines. The Institute shall operate as a non-profit autonomous organization, international in status and non-political in management, staffing and operations. The Institute shall be organized exclusively for scientific, developmental and educational purposes.
2. The Institute shall possess full juridical personality and enjoy such legal capacity as may be necessary for the exercise of its functions and the fulfilment of its purposes.

ARTICLE III SUBSIDIARY BODIES

The Institute may establish such centres, offices or laboratories, in locations within and outside the Republic of Korea as may be decided by the Board of Trustees (hereinafter referred to as the "Board") as being necessary for effective conduct of its programmes and the achievement of its objectives.

ARTICLE IV AIMS

The Institute shall carry out major scientific functions within the overall goals and framework of the CVI. Specifically, it will:

1. undertake and promote study, research, development and dissemination of knowledge in the vaccine-relevant sciences and directly related areas of public health, management sciences and technology to generate affordable and effective means to prevent death and disability arising from infectious diseases and, thereby, to improve the health status and general welfare of children and low-income people in developing and developed countries, especially in Asia; and
2. provide, in collaboration with relevant national and international institutions, facilities and training programmes aimed at strengthening expertise and capacity for developing and developed countries to conduct work in the areas of the Institute's interest and competence.

ARTICLE V GUIDING PRINCIPLES

1. The Institute will serve as an international resource centre devoted to developing specific areas of expertise and providing technical assistance for research and development of vaccines.
2. The Institute will complement its activities with those of other international and national institutions, public and private, that have similar aims. Its activities will, wherever appropriate, be planned and implemented in collaboration with such institutions. In particular, the Institute shall fully cooperate with the World Health Organization (hereinafter referred to as "WHO") in determining the technical and other aspects of its programme that relate to WHO's mandate.

ARTICLE VI FUNCTIONS

1. The Institute will have four programme areas:
 - (i) To provide training and technical assistance in the production technology and research of vaccines;
 - (ii) To conduct laboratory and field-based research and development;
 - (iii) To support and conduct clinical trials and field evaluations of new vaccines, and to facilitate and promote introduction of new and improved vaccines; and
 - (iv) To cooperate with vaccine manufacturers and national control authorities and other relevant bodies in developed and developing countries to promote vaccine research and development.

The Institute may identify other programme areas in accordance with its aims.

2. In fulfilling the aforementioned aims and responsibilities, in the spirit of its guiding principles, the Institute shall engage in a wide range of activities including:
 - (i) holding meetings and arranging lectures, training courses, workshops, seminars, symposia and conferences;
 - (ii) publishing and disseminating books, periodicals, reports and research and working papers;
 - (iii) establishing and maintaining contact with individuals and other institutions with expertise in the vaccine-relevant fields through collaborative research seminars, exchange visits, sabbatical attachments and likewise;
 - (iv) undertaking studies and other projects on behalf of or in collaboration with other institutions;
 - (v) maintaining offices, field stations, laboratories, pilot plants, animal research facilities, information resources, scientific

equipment and instruments, as may be necessary for its proper functioning; and

- (vi) taking such other actions as may further the aims and objectives of the Institute.

3. The Institute's programmes and plans shall be reviewed and approved by its Board taking into account the needs of developing and developed countries and the Institute's capabilities in meeting these needs.

ARTICLE VII CAPACITY

1. The Institute shall have the following capacity:

- (i) to receive, acquire or otherwise lawfully obtain from any governmental authority or from any corporation, company, association, person, firm, foundation or other entity whether international, regional or national, such charters, licenses rights, concessions or similar rights, and assistance - financial or otherwise - as are conducive to and necessary for the attainment of its aims;
- (ii) to receive, acquire or otherwise lawfully obtain from any governmental authority or from any corporation, company, association, person, firm, foundation or other entity, whether international, regional or national, by donation, grant, exchange, devise, bequest, purchase or lease, either absolutely or in trust, contributions consisting of such properties, real, personal, or mixed including funds and valuable effects or items, as may be useful or necessary to pursue the aims and activities of the Institute and to hold, operate, administer, use, sell, convey or dispose of the said properties;
- (iii) to enter into agreements and contracts;
- (iv) to employ persons according to its own regulations;
- (v) to institute, and defend in, legal proceedings; and
- (vi) to perform all acts and functions as may be found necessary, expedient, suitable or proper for the furtherance,

accomplishment or attainment of and/or all of the purposes and activities herein stated, or which shall appear, at any time, as conducive to or necessary and useful for the aims and activities of the Institute.

2. No part of the earnings of the Institute shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to, its trustees, officers, or other private persons, except that the Institute shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the aims set forth in Article IV hereof.

ARTICLE VIII ORGANS

The organs of the Institute shall be:

- (i) The Board of Trustees; and
- (ii) The Director and staff.

ARTICLE IX COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

1. The Board shall consist of not less than thirteen nor more than seventeen members, selected as follows:

- (i) up to ten members-at-large elected by the Board. Regard shall be paid especially to proposed members' professional experience and qualifications, to appropriate geographical distribution, to agencies and countries which have concern for and provide substantial support to the Institute, or to countries where major facilities are located;
- (ii) two members appointed by the host country;
- (iii) two members appointed by WHO;
- (iv) one member elected by the Board upon the recommendation of UNDP;

- (v) the Executive Secretary of the CVI, or his/her representative, as a member *ex-officio*; and
 - (vi) the Director of the Institute as a member *ex-officio*.
2. Member-at-large shall be appointed for terms of no more than three years as determined by the Board in advance of the appointment. In the case of vacancy of members-at-large by reason of their retirement, death, incapacity, or any other cause, the Board shall fill the vacancy in the same manner as the original appointment. A new member appointed to replace a member during the latter's term, may be appointed for the remaining term of the member being replaced. He/she is eligible to serve two additional terms.
 3. The members of the Board are eligible for reappointment to a second term, but shall not serve more than two successive terms, except that the member elected as Chairperson may have his/her term extended by the Board in order to coincide with his/her appointment as Chairperson.
 4. The members of the Board, other than the members serving *ex-officio* and the members appointed by the host country and WHO, shall serve in a personal capacity and are not considered, nor do they act, as official representatives of governments or organizations.
 5. The term of office and the selection of the members appointed by the Government of the host country (hereinafter referred to as the "Government") will be determined by the Government.

ARTICLE X FUNCTIONS AND POWERS OF THE BOARD

1. The Board shall be responsible for all the affairs of the Institute. Its role, among other things, shall be to ensure that:
 - (i) the Institute follows objectives, programmes and plans that are consistent with its aims and with the broad goals and objectives of the CVI; and
 - (ii) the Institute is managed effectively by the Director in harmony with the agreed objectives, programmes and budgets, and in accordance with legal and regulatory requirements.

2. To this end, the Board shall:

- (i) define objectives, approve plans to meet the Institute's aims and monitor the achievement of these aims;
- (ii) specify policies to be followed by the Director in pursuing the specified objectives;
- (iii) ensure the Institute's cost-effectiveness, financial integrity, and accountability;
- (iv) approve the Institute's programme and budget;
- (v) appoint an external auditor and approve an annual audit plan;
- (vi) approve the Institute's broad organizational framework;
- (vii) approve personnel policies including scales of salaries and benefits;
- (viii) approve the Institute's fund raising and resource mobilization strategies, policies and programmes, and promote such fund raising and resource mobilization activities;
- (ix) maintain the composition of the Board with respect to expertise needed to discharge the full range of its responsibilities, monitor the performance of staff and evaluate the Institute's performance; and
- (x) perform all other acts that may be considered necessary, suitable and proper for the attainment of the aims of the Institute as set forth in Article IV hereof.

3. The Board may designate an Executive Committee of its members which shall have the power to act for the Board in the interim between Board meetings, and on matters which the Board delegates to it. All interim actions of the Executive Committee shall be reported to the full Board at its next meeting. The Executive Committee shall be comprised of five members of the Board. The Director and at least one ex-officio member of the host country shall serve as members of the Executive Committee.

4. The Board may establish such other subsidiary Committees as it deems necessary for the performance of its functions.

ARTICLE XI PROCEDURES OF THE BOARD

1. The Board shall elect one member except the Director as Chairperson. The normal term of the Chairperson shall be three years. The Board may re-elect its Chairperson for a second term.
2. The Board shall also elect a Vice-Chairperson, a Secretary and a Treasurer. The normal terms of these officers shall be three years. They are eligible for re-election.
3. The Board shall meet at least once annually.
4. The Board shall adopt its own rules of procedure.
5. The majority of the members shall constitute a quorum for Board meetings.

ARTICLE XII VOTING BY THE BOARD

Normally, the Board shall operate by consensus. However, if the Chairperson determines the need for a vote, the following shall apply:

- (i) each member of the Board has one vote; and
- (ii) decisions of the Board shall be made by a majority of the members present except as specified otherwise in this Constitution.

ARTICLE XIII APPOINTMENT OF THE DIRECTOR

The Board shall appoint the Director, and determine his/her terms of office and any cause for termination by a two-thirds majority of members present and voting.

ARTICLE XIV FUNCTIONS AND POWERS OF THE DIRECTOR

1. The Director shall be responsible to the Board for the operation and management of the Institute and for ensuring that its programmes and

objectives are properly developed and carried out. The Director shall take the lead in fund raising and resources mobilization for the Institute. He/she is the chief executive officer of the Institute.

2. The Director shall implement the policies determined by the Board, follow the guidelines laid down by the Board for the functioning of the Institute and carry out the directions of the Board. Specifically, the Director, in consultation with the Board, shall:

- (i) develop a strategic plan for the operation of the Institute for Board consideration and approval, and keep this plan under continuing review;
- (ii) develop programmes and budgets, and prepare the Institute's annual report;
- (iii) supervise the planning and direction of the Institute's research, developmental and educational activities to ensure effective implementation;
- (iv) recruit and manage highly qualified staff;
- (v) keep and have available the strategic plan, programmes and budgets for review by the Board on a regular basis;
- (vi) keep the Chairperson of the Board advised on matters of consequence that relate to the Institute; and
- (vii) perform such other functions as are delegated to him/her by the Board.

3. The Director shall be the legal representative of the Institute. He/she shall sign all deeds, contracts, agreements, treaties and other legal documents which are necessary to ensure the normal operation of the Institute. The Board may determine the extent to which these powers may be delegated by the Director. Contracts, agreements and treaties which affect the governance, objectives, location, expansions or dissolution of the Institute, or major issues concerning the relationship to the host country shall be subject to approval by the Board.

ARTICLE XV STAFFING

1. The staff shall be appointed by the Director in accordance with staff regulations to be approved by the Board.
2. The paramount consideration in the employment of staff and in the determination of the conditions of service shall be the necessity of securing the highest standards of quality, integrity, efficiency, and competence.
3. Salary scales, insurance, pension schemes and other terms of employment shall be laid down in staff regulations, and shall in principle be internationally competitive and comparable with those of the United Nations and affiliated institutions and other relevant international organizations.

ARTICLE XVI FINANCING

1. The budget of the Institute shall be funded by member states, international organizations and other public or private agencies and institutions, including members of the CVI, who wish to make financial and other voluntary contributions to it. The Institute may receive contributions from other sources. It may also receive contributions and gifts towards the establishment of an endowment programme.
2. The financial operations of the Institute shall be governed by financial regulations to be adopted by the Board.
3. The budget of the Institute is approved annually by the Board.
4. An annual audit of the operations of the Institute shall be conducted by an independent international accounting firm appointed by the Board upon recommendation of the Director. The results of such audits shall be made available by the Director to the Board for its consideration. Following the approval by the Board, the audit report shall be circulated to parties contributing to the Institute.

ARTICLE XVII PRIVILEGES AND IMMUNITIES

1. The Institute shall conclude with the Government a Headquarters Agreement relating to the facilities, privileges and immunities which the Institute, the members of the Board of Trustees, the Director and staff of the Institute, and the experts performing missions on behalf of the Institute, will receive while in Korea for the purpose of exercising official duties.
2. The Institute may conclude with other states an agreement relating to the facilities, privileges and immunities which the Institute, the members of its Board of Trustees, the Director and staff of the Institute, and the experts performing missions on behalf of the Institute, will receive while in their territories for the purpose of exercising official duties.
3. The privileges and immunities are granted in the interest of the Institute and not for personal benefit. The Board of Trustees shall have the right to waive the privileges and immunities.

ARTICLE XVIII RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER ORGANIZATIONS

In order to achieve its objectives in the most efficient way, the Institute may enter into agreements for cooperation with relevant national, regional or international organizations, foundations and associations, both public and private.

ARTICLE XIX DISPUTES RESOLUTION

The Institute shall make provisions for appropriate modes of settlement including arbitration of disputes between the Institute and its staff or among its staff.

ARTICLE XX AMENDMENTS

1. This constitution may be amended by the Board by a two-thirds majority of all voting members, provided notice of such a proposed

amendment together with its full text shall have been mailed to all members of the Board at least four weeks in advance of the meeting, or such notice is waived by all members of the Board.

2. Such an amendment shall take effect immediately after having been adopted by the voting members under the procedure outlined in paragraph 1.

ARTICLE XXI DISSOLUTION

1. The Institute may be dissolved by a three-fourths majority of all voting members of the Board, if it is determined that the purposes of the Institute have been achieved to a satisfactory degree or if it is determined that the Institute will no longer be able to function effectively.

2. In the case of dissolution, any land, physical plant and other assets situated in the host country and other countries, and made available to the Institute by the Government, and permanent fixed capital improvements thereon shall revert to the Government. The other assets of the Institute shall be transferred to such countries for use for similar purposes or distributed to institutions having purposes similar to those of the Institute in the respective countries after agreement between the governments of those countries and the Board in consultation with the Government.

[For signatures, see p. 229 of this volume.]

باسم أفغانستان :

代表阿富汗：

In the name of Afghanistan:

Au nom de l'Afghanistan :

От имени Афганистана:

En nombre del Afganistán:

باسم ألبانيا :

代表阿尔巴尼亚：

In the name of Albania:

Au nom de l'Albanie :

От имени Албании:

En nombre de Albania:

باسم الجزائر :

代表阿尔及利亚：

In the name of Algeria:

Au nom de l'Algérie :

От имени Алжира:

En nombre de Argelia:

باسم أندورا :

以安道尔的名义：

In the name of Andorra:

Au nom de l'Andorre :

От имени Андорры:

En nombre de Andorra:

باسم أنغولا :

代表安哥拉:

In the name of Angola:

Au nom de l'Angola :

От имени Анголы:

En nombre de Angola:

باسم أنتيغوا وبربودا :

代表安提瓜和巴布达:

In the name of Antigua and Barbuda:

Au nom d'Antigua-et-Barbuda :

От имени Антигуа и Барбуды:

En nombre de Antigua y Barbuda:

باسم الأرجنتين :

代表阿根廷:

In the name of Argentina:

Au nom de l'Argentine :

От имени Аргентины:

En nombre de la Argentina:

باسم أرمينيا :

亚美尼亚代表:

In the name of Armenia:

Au nom de l'Arménie :

От имени Армении:

En nombre de Armenia:

باسم استراليا :

代表澳大利亚:

In the name of Australia:

Au nom de l'Australie :

От имени Австралии:

En nombre de Australia:

باسم النمسا :

代表奥地利:

In the name of Austria:

Au nom de l'Autriche :

От имени Австрии:

En nombre de Austria:

باسم أذربيجان :

阿塞拜疆代表:

In the name of Azerbaijan:

Au nom de l'Azerbaïdjan :

От имени Азербайджана:

En nombre de Azerbaïyan:

باسم البهاما :

代表巴哈马:

In the name of the Bahamas:

Au nom des Bahamas :

От имени Багамских островов:

En nombre de las Bahamas:

باسم البحرين :

代表巴林:

In the name of Bahrain:

Au nom de Bahreïn :

От имени Бахрейна:

En nombre de Bahrein:

باسم بنغلاديش:

代表孟加拉国:

In the name of Bangladesh:

Au nom du Bangladesh :

От имени Бангладеш:

En nombre de Bangladesh:

ANWORUL KARIM CHOWDHURY

[28 October 1996 — 28 octobre 1996]

باسم بربادوس:

代表巴巴多斯:

In the name of Barbados:

Au nom de la Barbade :

От имени Барбадоса:

En nombre de Barbados:

عن بيلاروس :

白俄罗斯代表:

In the name of Belarus:

Au nom du Bélarus :

От имени Беларуси:

En nombre de Belarús:

باسم بلجیکا :

代表比利时:

In the name of Belgium:

Au nom de la Belgique :

От имени Бельгии:

En nombre de Belgique:

باسم بلیز :

代表伯利兹:

In the name of Belize:

Au nom du Belize :

От имени Белиза:

En nombre de Belize:

باسم بنین :

代表贝宁:

In the name of Benin:

Au nom du Bénin :

От имени Бенина:

En nombre de Benin:

باسم بوتان :

代表不丹:

In the name of Bhutan:

Au nom du Bhoutan :

От имени Бутана:

En nombre de Bhután:

UGYEN TSHERING

[25 October 1996 — 25 octobre 1996]

باسم بوليفيا :

代表玻利维亚:

In the name of Bolivia:

Au nom de la Bolivie :

От имени Боливии:

En nombre de Bolivia:

باسم البوسنة والهرسك :

以波斯尼亚和黑塞哥维那的名义:

In the name of Bosnia and Herzegovina:

Au nom de la Bosnie-Herzégovine :

От имени Боснии и Герцеговины:

En nombre de Bosnia y Herzegovina:

باسم بوتسوانا :

代表博茨瓦纳:

In the name of Botswana:

Au nom du Botswana :

От имени Ботсваны:

En nombre de Botswana:

باسم البرازيل :

代表巴西:

In the name of Brazil:

Au nom du Brésil :

От имени Бразилии:

En nombre del Brasil:

CELSO L. N. AMORIM

[28 April 1997 — 28 avril 1997]

باسم بروني دارالسلام :

代表文莱国 :

In the name of Brunei Darussalam:

Au nom de Brunéi Darussalam :

От имени Брунея Даруссалама:

En nombre de Brunei Darussalam:

باسم بلغاريا :

代表保加利亚 :

In the name of Bulgaria:

Au nom de la Bulgarie :

От имени Болгарии:

En nombre de Bulgaria:

باسم بوركينا فاسو :

代表布尔基纳法索 :

In the name of Burkina Faso:

Au nom du Burkina Faso :

От имени Буркина Фасо:

En nombre de Burkina Faso:

باسم بوروندي :

代表布隆迪 :

In the name of Burundi:

Au nom du Burundi :

От имени Бурунди:

En nombre de Burundi:

باسم كمبوديا :

柬埔寨代表:

In the name of Cambodia:

Au nom du Cambodge :

От имени Камбоджи:

En nombre de Camboya:

باسم الكاميرون :

喀麦隆代表:

In the name of Cameroon:

Au nom du Cameroun :

От имени Камеруна:

En nombre del Camerún:

باسم كندا :

代表加拿大:

In the name of Canada:

Au nom du Canada :

От имени Канады:

En nombre del Canadá:

باسم الرأس الأخضر:

代表佛得角:

In the name of Cape Verde:

Au nom du Cap-Vert :

От имени Островов Зеленого Мыса:

En nombre de Cabo Verde:

باسم جمهورية افريقيا الوسطى :

代表中非共和国:

In the name of the Central African Republic:

Au nom de la République centrafricaine :

От имени Центральноафриканской Республики:

En nombre de la República Centrafricana:

باسم تشاد :

代表乍得:

In the name of Chad:

Au nom du Tchad :

От имени Чада:

En nombre del Chad:

باسم شيلي :

代表智利:

In the name of Chile:

Au nom du Chili :

От имени Чили:

En nombre de Chile:

باسم الصين :

代表中国:

In the name of China:

Au nom de la Chine :

От имени Китая:

En nombre de China:

QIN HUASUN

باسم كولومبيا :

代表哥伦比亚:

In the name of Colombia:

Au nom de la Colombie :

От имени Колумбии:

En nombre de Colombia:

باسم كومورو :

代表科摩罗:

In the name of the Comoros:

Au nom des Comores :

От имени Коморских островов:

En nombre de las Comoras:

باسم الكونغو:

代表刚果:

In the name of the Congo:

Au nom du Congo :

От имени Конго:

En nombre del Congo:

باسم جزر كوك :

代表库克群岛:

In the name of Cook Islands:

Au nom des Iles Cook :

От имени островов Кука:

En nombre de las Islas Cook:

باسم كوستاريكا :

代表哥斯达黎加 :

In the name of Costa Rica:

Au nom du Costa Rica :

От имени Коста-Рики:

En nombre de Costa Rica:

باسم كوت ديفوار :

科特迪瓦代表:

In the name of Côte d'Ivoire:

Au nom de la Côte d'Ivoire :

От имени Кот д'Ивуар:

En nombre de Côte d'Ivoire:

باسم كرواتيا :

以克罗地亚的名义 :

In the name of Croatia:

Au nom de la Croatie :

От имени Хорватии:

En nombre de Croacia:

باسم كوبا :

代表古巴:

In the name of Cuba:

Au nom de Cuba :

От имени Кубы:

En nombre de Cuba:

باسم قبرص :

代表塞浦路斯:

In the name of Cyprus:

Au nom de Chypre :

От имени Кипра:

En nombre de Chipre:

باسم الجمهورية التشيكية :

捷克共和国代表:

In the name of the Czech Republic:

Au nom de la République tchèque :

От имени Чешской Республики:

En nombre de la República Checa:

باسم جمهورية كوريا الشعبية الديمقراطية :

代表朝鲜民主主义人民共和国:

In the name of the Democratic People's Republic of Korea:

Au nom de la République populaire démocratique de Corée :

От имени Корейской Народно-Демократической Республики:

En nombre de la República Popular Democrática de Corea:

باسم الدانمرك :

代表丹麦:

In the name of Denmark:

Au nom du Danemark :

От имени Дании:

En nombre de Dinamarca:

باسم جيبوتي :

代表吉布提：

In the name of Djibouti:

Au nom de Djibouti :

От имени Джибути:

En nombre de Djibouti:

باسم دومينيكا :

代表多米尼加：

In the name of Dominica:

Au nom de la Dominique :

От имени Доминики:

En nombre de Dominica:

باسم الجمهورية الدومينيكية :

代表多米尼加共和国：

In the name of the Dominican Republic:

Au nom de la République dominicaine :

От имени Доминиканской Республики:

En nombre de la República Dominicana:

باسم اکوادور :

代表厄瓜多尔：

In the name of Ecuador:

Au nom de l'Equateur :

От имени Эквадора:

En nombre del Ecuador:

LUIS VALENCIA RODRIGUEZ

[25 March 1998 — 25 mars 1998]

باسم مصر:

代表埃及:

In the name of Egypt:

Au nom de l'Égypte :

От имени Египта:

En nombre de Égypto:

NABIL A. ELARABY

[22 April 1997 — 22 avril 1997]

باسم السلفادور:

代表萨尔瓦多:

In the name of El Salvador:

Au nom d'El Salvador :

От имени Сальвадора:

En nombre de El Salvador:

باسم غينيا الاستوائية:

代表赤道几内亚:

In the name of Equatorial Guinea:

Au nom de la Guinée équatoriale :

От имени Экваториальной Гвинеи:

En nombre de Guinée Ecuatorial:

باسم اريتريا:

代表厄立特里亚:

In the name of Eritrea:

Au nom de l'Érythrée :

От имени Эритреи:

En nombre de Eritrea:

عن استونيا :

爱沙尼亚代表:

In the name of Estonia:

Au nom de l'Estonie :

От имени Эстонии:

En nombre de Estonia:

باسم اثيوبيا :

代表埃塞俄比亚:

In the name of Ethiopia:

Au nom de l'Ethiopie :

От имени Эфиопии:

En nombre de Etiopía:

باسم فيجي :

代表斐济:

In the name of Fiji:

Au nom de Fidji :

От имени Фиджи:

En nombre de Fiji:

باسم فنلندا :

代表芬兰:

In the name of Finland:

Au nom de la Finlande :

От имени Финляндии:

En nombre de Finlandia:

باسم فرنسا :

代表法国：

In the name of France:

Au nom de la France :

От имени Франции:

En nombre de Francia:

باسم غابون :

代表加蓬：

In the name of Gabon:

Au nom du Gabon :

От имени Габона:

En nombre del Gabón:

باسم غامبيا :

代表冈比亚：

In the name of the Gambia:

Au nom de la Gambie :

От имени Гамбии:

En nombre de Gambia:

باسم جورجيا :

格鲁吉亚代表：

In the name of Georgia:

Au nom de la Géorgie :

От имени Грузии:

En nombre de Georgia:

باسم ألمانيا :

德国代表:

In the name of Germany:

Au nom de l'Allemagne :

От имени Германии:

En nombre de Alemania:

باسم غانا :

代表加纳:

In the name of Ghana:

Au nom du Ghana :

От имени Ганы:

En nombre de Ghana:

باسم اليونان :

代表希腊:

In the name of Greece:

Au nom de la Grèce :

От имени Греции:

En nombre de Grecia:

باسم غرينادا :

代表格林纳达:

In the name of Grenada:

Au nom de la Grenade :

От имени Гренады:

En nombre de Granada:

باسم غواتيمالا :

代表危地马拉:

In the name of Guatemala:

Au nom du Guatemala :

От имени Гватемалы:

En nombre de Guatemala:

باسم غينيا :

代表几内亚:

In the name of Guinea:

Au nom de la Guinée :

От имени Гвинеи:

En nombre de Guinea:

باسم غينيا - بيساو :

代表几内亚比绍:

In the name of Guinea-Bissau:

Au nom de la Guinée-Bissau :

От имени Гвинеи-Бисау:

En nombre de Guinea-Bissau:

باسم غيانا :

代表圭亚那:

In the name of Guyana:

Au nom du Guyana :

От имени Гвианы:

En nombre de Guyana:

باسم هايتى :

代表海地:

In the name of Haiti:

Au nom d'Haïti :

От имени Гаити:

En nombre de Haïti:

باسم الكرسي الرسولي :

代表教廷:

In the name of the Holy See:

Au nom du Saint-Siège :

От имени Святейшего престола:

En nombre de la Santa Sede:

باسم هندوراس:

代表洪都拉斯:

In the name of Honduras:

Au nom du Honduras :

От имени Гондураса:

En nombre de Honduras:

باسم هنغاريا :

代表匈牙利:

In the name of Hungary:

Au nom de la Hongrie :

От имени Венгрии:

En nombre de Hungría:

باسم آيسلندا :

代表冰岛:

In the name of Iceland:

Au nom de l'Islande :

От имени Исландии:

En nombre de Islandia:

باسم الهند :

代表印度:

In the name of India:

Au nom de l'Inde :

От имени Индии:

En nombre de la India:

باسم اندونسيا :

代表印度尼西亚:

In the name of Indonesia:

Au nom de l'Indonésie :

От имени Индонезии:

En nombre de Indonesia:

NUGROHO WISNUMURTI

[28 October 1996 — 28 octobre 1996]

باسم جمهورية ايران الاسلامية :

代表伊朗伊斯兰共和国:

In the name of the Islamic Republic of Iran:

Au nom de la République islamique d'Iran :

От имени Исламской Республики Иран:

En nombre de la República Islámica del Irán:

باسم العراق :

代表伊拉克:

In the name of Iraq:

Au nom de l'Iraq :

От имени Ирака:

En nombre del Iraq:

باسم ايرلندا :

代表爱尔兰:

In the name of Ireland:

Au nom de l'Irlande :

От имени Ирландии:

En nombre de Irlanda:

باسم اسرائيل :

代表以色列:

In the name of Israel:

Au nom d'Israël :

От имени Израиля:

En nombre de Israel:

DAVID PELEG

[28 January 1997 — 28 janvier 1997]

باسم ايطاليا :

代表意大利:

In the name of Italy:

Au nom de l'Italie :

От имени Италии:

En nombre de Italia:

باسم جامايكا :

代表牙买加 :

In the name of Jamaica:

Au nom de la Jamaïque :

От имени Ямайки:

En nombre de Jamaïca:

PATRICIA DURRRANT

[14 November 1997 — 14 novembre 1997]

باسم اليابان :

代表日本:

In the name of Japan:

Au nom du Japon :

От имени Японии:

En nombre del Japón:

باسم الأردن :

代表约旦:

In the name of Jordan:

Au nom de la Jordanie :

От имени Иордании:

En nombre de Jordania:

باسم كازاخستان :

哈萨克斯坦代表:

In the name of Kazakhstan:

Au nom du Kazakhstan :

От имени Казахстана:

En nombre de Kazajstán:

A. ARYSTANBEKOVA

[28 October 1996 — 28 octobre 1996]

باسم كينيا :

代表肯尼亚:

In the name of Kenya:

Au nom du Kenya :

От имени Кении:

En nombre de Kenya:

باسم كيريباتي :

代表基里巴斯:

In the name of Kiribati:

Au nom de Kiribati :

От имени Кирибати:

En nombre de Kiribati:

باسم الكويت :

代表科威特:

In the name of Kuwait:

Au nom du Koweït :

От имени Кувейта:

En nombre de Kuwait:

باسم قيرغيزستان :

吉尔吉斯斯坦代表:

In the name of Kyrgyzstan:

Au nom du Kirghizistan :

От имени Кыргызстана:

En nombre de Kirguistán:

[*Illegible — Illisible*]

[18 February 1997 — 18 février 1997]

باسم جمهورية لاو الديمقراطية الشعبية :

代表老挝人民民主共和国:

In the name of the Lao People's Democratic Republic:

Au nom de la République démocratique populaire lao :

От имени Лаосской Народно-Демократической Республики:

En nombre de la República Democrática Popular Lao:

عن لاتفيا :

拉脱维亚代表:

In the name of Latvia:

Au nom de la Lettonie :

От имени Латвии:

En nombre de Letonia:

باسم لبنان :

代表黎巴嫩:

In the name of Lebanon:

Au nom du Liban :

От имени Ливана:

En nombre del Líbano:

[Illegible — Illisible]

[12 January 1998 — 12 janvier 1998]

باسم ليسوتو :

代表莱索托:

In the name of Lesotho:

Au nom du Lesotho :

От имени Лесото:

En nombre de Lesotho:

باسم لیبیریا :

代表利比里亞 :

In the name of Liberia:

Au nom du Libéria :

От имени Либѣрии:

En nombre de Liberia:

باسم الجماهيرية العربية الليبية :

代表阿拉伯利比亞民眾國 :

In the name of the Libyan Arab Jamahiriya:

Au nom de la Jamahiriya arabe libyenne :

От имени Ливийской Арабской Джамахирии:

En nombre de la Jamahiriya Arabe Libia:

باسم لختنштаين :

代表列支敦士登 :

In the name of Liechtenstein:

Au nom du Liechtenstein :

От имени Лихтенштейна:

En nombre de Liechtenstein:

عن ليتوانيا :

立陶宛代表 :

In the name of Lithuania:

Au nom de la Lituanie :

От имени Литвы:

En nombre de Lituania:

باسم لكسمبرغ :

代表卢森堡 :

In the name of Luxembourg:

Au nom du Luxembourg :

От имени Люксембурга:

En nombre de Luxembourg:

باسم مدغشقر :

代表马达加斯加 :

In the name of Madagascar:

Au nom de Madagascar :

От имени Мадагаскара:

En nombre de Madagascar:

باسم ملاوى :

代表马拉维 :

In the name of Malawi:

Au nom du Malawi :

От имени Малави:

En nombre de Malawi:

باسم ماليزيا :

代表马来西亚 :

In the name of Malaysia:

Au nom de la Malaisie :

От имени Малайзии:

En nombre de Malasia:

باسم ملديف :

代表马尔代夫:

In the name of Maldives:

Au nom des Maldives :

От имени Мальдивов:

En nombre de Maldivas:

باسم مالي :

代表马里:

In the name of Mali:

Au nom du Mali :

От имени Мали:

En nombre de Malí:

باسم مالطة :

代表马耳他:

In the name of Malta:

Au nom de Malte :

От имени Мальты:

En nombre de Malta:

GEORGE SALIBA

[13 March 1998 — 13 mars 1998]

عن جزر مارشال :

马绍尔群岛代表:

In the name of the Marshall Islands:

Au nom des Iles Marshall :

От имени Маршалловых Островов:

En nombre de las Islas Marshall:

باسم موريتانيا :

代表毛里塔尼亚:

In the name of Mauritania:

Au nom de la Mauritanie :

От имени Мавритании:

En nombre de Mauritania:

باسم موريشوس :

代表毛里求斯:

In the name of Mauritius:

Au nom de Maurice :

От имени Маврикия:

En nombre de Mauricio:

باسم المكسيك :

代表墨西哥:

In the name of Mexico:

Au nom du Mexique :

От имени Мексики:

En nombre de México:

عن ولايات ميكرونيزيا الموحدة :

密克罗尼西亚联邦代表:

In the name of the Federated States of Micronesia:

Au nom des Etats fédérés de Micronésie :

От имени Федеративных Штатов Микронезии:

En nombre de los Estados Federados de Micronesia:

باسم موناكو:

代表摩纳哥:

In the name of Monaco:

Au nom de Monaco :

От имени Монако:

En nombre de Mónaco:

باسم منغوليا :

代表蒙古:

In the name of Mongolia:

Au nom de la Mongolie :

От имени Монголии:

En nombre de Mongolia:

J. ENKHSAIKHAN

[28 October 1996 — 28 octobre 1996]

باسم المغرب :

代表摩洛哥:

In the name of Morocco:

Au nom du Maroc :

От имени Марокко:

En nombre de Marruecos:

باسم موزامبيق :

代表莫桑比克:

In the name of Mozambique:

Au nom du Mozambique :

От имени Мозамбика:

En nombre de Mozambique:

باسم ميانمار :

緬甸代表:

In the name of Myanmar:

Au nom du Myanmar :

От имени Мьянмы:

En nombre de Myanmar:

[*Illegible — Illisible*]

[3 January 1997 — 3 janvier 1997]

باسم ناميبيا :

代表納米比亞:

In the name of Namibia:

Au nom de la Namibie :

От имени Намибии:

En nombre de Namibia:

باسم ناورو:

代表瑙魯:

In the name of Nauru:

Au nom de Nauru :

От имени Науру:

En nombre de Nauru:

باسم नेपाल :

代表尼泊爾:

In the name of Nepal:

Au nom du Népal :

От имени Непала:

En nombre de Nepal:

N. BIKRAM SHAH

[30 May 1997 — 30 mai 1997]

باسم هولندا :

代表荷兰:

In the name of the Netherlands:

Au nom des Pays-Bas :

От имени Нидерландов:

En nombre de los Países Bajos:

NICOLAAS H. BIEGMAN

[28 October 1996 — 28 octobre 1996]

باسم نيوزيلندا :

代表新西兰:

In the name of New Zealand:

Au nom de la Nouvelle-Zélande :

От имени Новой Зеландии:

En nombre de Nueva Zelandia:

باسم نيكاراغوا :

代表尼加拉瓜:

In the name of Nicaragua:

Au nom du Nicaragua :

От имени Никарагуа:

En nombre de Nicaragua:

باسم النيجر :

代表尼日尔:

In the name of the Niger:

Au nom du Niger :

От имени Нигера:

En nombre del Niger:

باسم نيجيريا :

代表尼日利亚:

In the name of Nigeria:

Au nom du Nigéria :

От имени Нигерии:

En nombre de Nigeria:

باسم نيوى :

代表纽埃岛:

In the name of Niue:

Au nom de la Nioué :

От имени Ниуэ:

En nombre de Niue:

باسم النرويج :

代表挪威:

In the name of Norway:

Au nom de la Norvège :

От имени Норвегии:

En nombre de Noruega:

باسم عمان :

代表阿曼:

In the name of Oman:

Au nom de l'Oman :

От имени Омана:

En nombre de Omán:

باسم باكستان :

代表巴基斯坦:

In the name of Pakistan:

Au nom du Pakistan :

От имени Пакистана:

En nombre del Pakistán:

AHMAD A. KAMAL

[23 December 1996 — 23 décembre 1996]

باسم بالاو:

帕劳代表:

In the name of Palau:

Au nom du Palaos :

От имени Палау:

En nombre de Palau:

باسم بنما :

代表巴拿马:

In the name of Panama:

Au nom du Panama :

От имени Панамы:

En nombre de Panamá:

GEORGE E. ILLUECA

[28 October 1996 — 28 octobre 1996]

باسم بابوا غينيا الجديدة :

代表巴布亚新几内亚:

In the name of Papua New Guinea:

Au nom de la Papouasie-Nouvelle-Guinée :

От имени Папуа-Новой Гвинеи:

En nombre de Papua Nueva Guinea:

[Illegible — Illisible]

[26 November 1996 — 26 novembre 1996]

باسم پاراگواي :

代表巴拉圭:

In the name of Paraguay:

Au nom du Paraguay :

От имени Парагвая:

En nombre del Paraguay:

باسم بيرو:

代表秘鲁:

In the name of Peru:

Au nom du Pérou :

От имени Перу:

En nombre del Perú:

FERNANDO GUILLEN SALAS

[13 June 1997 — 13 juin 1997]

باسم الفلبين :

代表菲律宾:

In the name of the Philippines:

Au nom des Philippines :

От имени Филиппин:

En nombre de Filipinas:

FELIPE MABILANGAN

[5 November 1996 — 5 novembre 1996]

باسم بولندا :

代表波兰:

In the name of Poland:

Au nom de la Pologne :

От имени Польши:

En nombre de Polonia:

باسم البرتغال :

代表葡萄牙:

In the name of Portugal:

Au nom du Portugal :

От имени Португалии:

En nombre de Portugal:

باسم قطر:

代表卡塔尔:

In the name of Qatar:

Au nom du Qatar :

От имени Катара:

En nombre de Qatar:

باسم جمهورية كوريا :

代表大韩民国:

In the name of the Republic of Korea:

Au nom de la République de Corée :

От имени Корейской Республики:

En nombre de la República de Corea:

[*Illegible — Illisible*]

[28 October 1996 — 28 octobre 1996]

باسم جمهورية مولدوفا :

摩尔多瓦共和国代表:

In the name of the Republic of Moldova:

Au nom de la République de Moldova :

От имени Республики Молдова:

En nombre de la República de Moldova:

باسم رومانيا :

代表罗马尼亚:

In the name of Romania:

Au nom de la Roumanie :

От имени Румынии:

En nombre de Rumania:

ION GORITA

[28 October 1996 — 28 octobre 1996]

باسم الاتحاد الروسي :

俄罗斯联邦代表:

In the name of the Russian Federation:

Au nom de la Fédération de Russie :

От имени Российской Федерации:

En nombre de la Federación de Rusia:

باسم رواندا :

代表卢旺达:

In the name of Rwanda:

Au nom du Rwanda :

От имени Руанды:

En nombre de Rwanda:

باسم سانت كيتي ونيفيس

代表圣基茨和尼维斯:

In the name of Saint Kitts and Nevis:

Au nom de Saint-Kitts-et-Nevis :

От имени Сент-Китс и Невис:

En nombre de Saint Kitts y Nevis:

باسم سانت لوسيا :

代表圣卢西亚:

In the name of Saint Lucia:

Au nom de Sainte-Lucie :

От имени Сент-Люсии:

En nombre de Santa Lucía:

باسم سانت فنسنت وجزر غرينادا :

代表圣文森特和格林纳丁斯:

In the name of Saint Vincent and the Grenadines:

Au nom de Saint-Vincent-et-Grenadines :

От имени Сент-Винсента и Гренадин:

En nombre de San Vicente y las Granadinas:

باسم ساموا :

代表萨摩亚:

In the name of Samoa:

Au nom du Samoa :

От имени Самоа:

En nombre de Samoa:

باسم سان مارينو:

代表圣马力诺:

In the name of San Marino:

Au nom de Saint-Marin :

От имени Сан-Марино:

En nombre de San Marino:

باسم سان تومي وبرينسيبي :

代表圣多美和普林西比:

In the name of Sao Tome and Principe:

Au nom de Sao Tomé-et-Principe :

От имени Сан-Томе и Принсипи:

En nombre de Santo Tomé y Príncipe:

باسم المملكة العربية السعودية :

代表沙特阿拉伯:

In the name of Saudi Arabia:

Au nom de l'Arabie saoudite :

От имени Саудовской Аравии:

En nombre de Arabia Saudita:

باسم السنغال :

代表塞内加尔:

In the name of Senegal:

Au nom du Sénégal :

От имени Сенегала:

En nombre del Senegal:

[*Illegible — Illisible*]

[30 October 1996 — 30 octobre 1996]

باسم سيشيل :

代表塞舌尔:

In the name of Seychelles:

Au nom des Seychelles :

От имени Сейшельских островов:

En nombre de Seychelles:

باسم سيراليون :

代表塞拉利昂:

In the name of Sierra Leone:

Au nom de la Sierra Leone :

От имени Сьерра-Леоне:

En nombre de Sierra Leona:

باسم سنغافوره :

代表新加坡:

In the name of Singapore:

Au nom de Singapour :

От имени Сингапура:

En nombre de Singapur:

باسم سلوفاكيا :

斯洛伐克代表:

In the name of Slovakia:

Au nom de la Slovaquie :

От имени Словакии:

En nombre de Eslovaquia:

باسم سلوفينيا :

以斯洛文尼亚的名义:

In the name of Slovenia:

Au nom de la Slovénie :

От имени Словении:

En nombre de Eslovenia:

باسم جزر سليمان :

代表所罗门群岛:

In the name of Solomon Islands:

Au nom des Iles Salomon :

От имени Соломоновых Островов:

En nombre de las Islas Salomón:

باسم الصومال :

代表索马里:

In the name of Somalia:

Au nom de la Somalie :

От имени Сомали:

En nombre de Somalia:

باسم افريقيا الجنوبية :

代表南非:

In the name of South Africa:

Au nom de l'Afrique du Sud :

От имени Южной Африки:

En nombre de Sudáfrica:

باسم اسبانيا :

代表西班牙:

In the name of Spain:

Au nom de l'Espagne :

От имени Испании

En nombre de España:

باسم سری لانکا :

代表斯里兰卡:

In the name of Sri Lanka:

Au nom de Sri Lanka :

От имени Шри Ланки:

En nombre de Sri Lanka:

[*Illegible — Illisible*]

[30 April 1997 — 30 avril 1997]

باسم السودان :

代表苏丹:

In the name of the Sudan:

Au nom du Soudan :

От имени Судана:

En nombre del Sudán:

باسم سورينام :

代表苏里南:

In the name of Suriname:

Au nom du Suriname :

От имени Суринама:

En nombre de Suriname:

باسم سوازیلاند :

代表斯威士兰:

In the name of Swaziland:

Au nom du Swaziland :

От имени Свазиленда:

En nombre de Swazilandia:

باسم السويد :

代表瑞典：

In the name of Sweden:

Au nom de la Suède :

От имени Швеции:

En nombre de Suecia:

PETER OSVALD

[2 April 1997 — 2 avril 1997]

باسم سويسرا :

代表瑞士：

In the name of Switzerland:

Au nom de la Suisse :

От имени Швейцарии:

En nombre de Suiza:

باسم الجمهورية العربية السورية :

代表阿拉伯叙利亚共和国：

In the name of the Syrian Arab Republic:

Au nom de la République arabe syrienne :

От имени Сирийской Арабской Республики:

En nombre de la República Árabe Siria:

باسم طاجيكستان :

塔吉克斯坦代表：

In the name of Tajikistan:

Au nom du Tadjikistan :

От имени Таджикистана:

En nombre de Tayikistán:

RACHID ALIMOV

[19 March 1997 — 19 mars 1997]

باسم تايلاند :

代表泰国：

In the name of Thailand:

Au nom de la Thaïlande :

От имени Таиланда:

En nombre de Tailandia:

ASDA JAYANAMA

[28 October 1996 — 28 octobre 1996]

باسم جمهورية مقدونيا اليوغوسلافية السابقة :

前南斯拉夫马其顿共和国代表：

In the name of the former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia:

Au nom de l'ex-République yougoslave de Macédoine :

От имени бывшей Югославской Республики Македонии:

En nombre de la ex República Yugoslava de Macedonia:

باسم توغو:

代表多哥：

In the name of Togo:

Au nom du Togo :

От имени Того:

En nombre del Togo:

باسم تونغا :

代表汤加：

In the name of Tonga:

Au nom des Tonga :

От имени Тонга:

En nombre de Tonga:

باسم ترینیداد وتوباغو:

代表特立尼达和多巴哥:

In the name of Trinidad and Tobago:

Au nom de la Trinité-et-Tobago :

От имени Тринидада и Тобаго:

En nombre de Trinidad y Tabago:

باسم تونس:

代表突尼斯:

In the name of Tunisia:

Au nom de la Tunisie :

От имени Туниса:

En nombre de Túnez:

باسم ترکیه:

代表土耳其:

In the name of Turkey:

Au nom de la Turquie :

От имени Турции:

En nombre de Turquía:

HUSEYIN CELEM

[9 October 1997 — 9 octobre 1997]

باسم ترکمنستان :

土库曼斯坦代表:

In the name of Turkmenistan:

Au nom du Turkménistan :

От имени Туркменистана:

En nombre de Turkmenistán:

باسم توفالو:

代表图瓦卢:

In the name of Tuvalu:

Au nom de Tuvalu :

От имени Тувалу:

En nombre de Tuvalu:

باسم أوغندا:

代表乌干达:

In the name of Uganda:

Au nom de l'Ouganda :

От имени Уганды:

En nombre de Uganda:

عن أوكرانيا :

乌克兰代表:

In the name of Ukraine:

Au nom de l'Ukraine :

От имени Украины:

En nombre de Ucraina:

باسم الامارات العربية المتحدة:

代表阿拉伯联合酋长国:

In the name of the United Arab Emirates:

Au nom des Emirats arabes unis :

От имени Объединенных Арабских Эмиратов:

En nombre de los Emiratos Arabes Unidos:

باسم المملكة المتحدة لبريطانيا العظمى وايرلندا الشمالية :

代表大不列颠及北爱尔兰联合王国:

In the name of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland:

Au nom du Royaume-Uni de Grande-Bretagne et d'Irlande du Nord :

От имени Соединенного Королевства Великобритании и Северной Ирландии:

En nombre del Reino Unido de Gran Bretaña e Irlanda del Norte:

باسم جمهورية تنزانيا المتحدة :

代表坦桑尼亚联合共和国:

In the name of the United Republic of Tanzania:

Au nom de la République-Unie de Tanzanie :

От имени Объединенной Республики Танзания:

En nombre de la República Unida de Tanzania:

باسم الولايات المتحدة الأمريكية :

代表美利坚合众国:

In the name of the United States of America:

Au nom des Etats-Unis d'Amérique :

От имени Соединенных Штатов Америки:

En nombre de los Estados Unidos de América:

باسم أوروغواي :

代表乌拉圭:

In the name of Uruguay:

Au nom de l'Uruguay :

От имени Уругвая:

En nombre del Uruguay:

باسم اوزبكيستان :

乌兹别克斯坦代表:

In the name of Uzbekistan:

Au nom de l'Ouzbékistan :

От имени Узбекистана:

En nombre de Uzbekistán:

ALISHER VAKHIDOV

[28 October 1996 — 28 octobre 1996]

باسم فانواتو :

代表瓦努阿图:

In the name of Vanuatu:

Au nom de Vanuatu :

От имени Вануату:

En nombre de Vanuatu:

باسم فنزويلا :

代表委内瑞拉:

In the name of Venezuela:

Au nom du Venezuela :

От имени Венесуэлы:

En nombre de Venezuela:

باسم فيت نام :

代表越南社会主义共和国:

In the name of Viet Nam:

Au nom du Viet Nam :

От имени Вьетнама:

En nombre de Viet Nam:

NGO QUANG XUAN

[28 October 1996 — 28 octobre 1996]

باسم اليمن :

代表也门:

In the name of Yemen:

Au nom du Yémen :

От имени Йемена:

En nombre del Yemen:

باسم يوغوسلافيا :

代表南斯拉夫:

In the name of Yugoslavia:

Au nom de la Yougoslavie :

От имени Югославии:

En nombre de Yugoslavia:

باسم زائير :

代表扎伊尔:

In the name of Zaïre:

Au nom du Zaïre :

От имени Заира:

En nombre del Zaïre:

باسم زامبيا :

代表赞比亚:

In the name of Zambia:

Au nom de la Zambie :

От имени Замбии:

En nombre de Zambia:

باسم زمبابوى :

代表津巴布韦:

In the name of Zimbabwe:

Au nom du Zimbabwe :

От имени Зимбабве:

En nombre de Zimbabwe:

باسم الجماعة الأوروبية :

以欧洲共同体名义:

In the name of the European Community:

Au nom de la Communauté européenne :

От имени Европейского сообщества:

En nombre de la Comunidad Europea:

HU CHING-LI

[28 October 1996 — 28 octobre 1996]

باسم منظمة الصحة العالمية :

代表世界卫生组织:

In the name of the World Health Organization:

Au nom de l'Organisation mondiale de la santé :

От имени Всемирной организации здравоохранения:

En nombre de la Organización Mundial de la Salud:

[*Illegible — Illisible*]

[28 October 1996 — 28 octobre 1996]

No. 33836. AGREEMENT ON THE ESTABLISHMENT OF THE INTERNATIONAL VACCINE INSTITUTE (WITH CONSTITUTION). OPENED FOR SIGNATURE AT NEW YORK ON 28 OCTOBER 1996¹

N° 33836. ACCORD PORTANT CRÉATION DU CENTRE INTERNATIONAL DU VACCIN (AVEC CONSTITUTION). OUVERT À LA SIGNATURE À NEW YORK LE 28 OCTOBRE 1996¹

APPROVAL

Instrument deposited on:

3 June 1997

VIET NAM

(With effect from 1 July 1997.)

Registered ex officio on 3 June 1997.

APPROBATION

Instrument déposé le :

3 juin 1997

VIET NAM

(Avec effet au 1^{er} juillet 1997.)

Enregistré d'office le 3 juin 1997.

¹ See p. 199 of this volume.

Vol. 1979, A-33836

¹ Voir p. 199 du présent volume.